# HARYANA STATE BOXING ASSOCIATION

Affiliated to The Indian Amateur Boxing Federation and The Haryana Olympic Association

(Registered Under Society Act XXI of 1860)

CONSTITUTION

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

# Memorandum of Association

- ARTICLE I : Name of Society
- ARTICLE II: Location of Registered office
- ARTICLE III: Aims and Objects
- ARTICLE IV: Governing Body
- ARTICLE V: Desirous Persons

# **Rules and Regulations**

- ARTICLE I : Definitions
- ARTICLE II : Association Year
- ARTICLE III : Membership
- ARTICLE IV : Procedure for admission
- ARTICLE V : Cancellation of Membership
- ARTICLE VI : Membership Fees
- ARTICLE VII : Appeal and Re-affiliation of Members
- ARTICLE VIII : Rights and Privileges of Membership
- ARTICLE IX : Executive Committee Meeting
- ARTICLE X : Annual General Meeting
- ARTICLE XI : Special General Meeting.
- ARTICLE XII : Notices and Quorum for Meeting
- ARTICLE XIII : Qualification of Representatives
- ARTICLE XIV : Election
- ARTICLE XV : Voting Right
- ARTICLE XVI : Office bearers
- ARTICLE XVII : Functions of Annual General Body
- ARTICLE XVIII : Power of Annual General Body
- ARTICLE XIX : Functions of Executive Committee
- ARTICLE XX : Duties of the Executive Committee
- ARTICLE XXI : Vacancies of Executive Committee

ARTICLE XXII :	Residuary Powers
ARTICLE XXIII :	Administration
ARTICLE XXIV :	Hony. Life President
ARTICLE XXV :	Power and Duty of the President
ARTICLE XXVI :	Power and Duty of the Vice-President
ARTICLE XXVII :	Power and Duty of the General Secretary
ARTICLE XXVIII :	Power and Duty of the Joint Secretary
ARTICLE XXIX :	Power and Duty of the Treasurer
ARTICLE XXX :	Operation of Bank Accounts
ARTICLE XXXI :	Audit of Accounts
ARTICLE XXXII :	Source of Income
ARTICLE XXXIII :	Utilization of Funds
ARTICLE XXXIV :	TA/ DA and Officiating Announce for the office bearers/ Championships
ARTICLE XXXV :	Permanent Commissions and Committees
ARTICLE XXXVI :	Oath of Office
ARTICLE XXXVII :	Organization, Function of the Standing Commission/Committee
ARTICLE XXXVIII :	Un sportsman Like Behavior and Act of Violence
ARTICLE XXXIX :	Disciplinary Sanctions
ARTICLE XXXX :	Participation in National and All India Championships
ARTICLE XXXXI :	Conduct of State Championships
ARTICLE XXXXII :	Requisition of the Meeting
ARTICLE XXXXIII :	Confidence Motion
ARTICLE XXXXIV :	Legal Proceeding (Section 6 of the Act)
ARTICLE XXXXV :	Amendments
ARTICLE XXXXVI :	Dissolutions and Adjustment of Affairs
ARTICLE XXXXVII :	Application of the Act
ARTICLE XXXXVIII :	Essential Certificate

# MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION of Haryana State Boxing Association

I. NAME OF SOCIETY:-

The name of the Association shall be HARYANA STATE BOXING ASSOCIATION (HSBA)

 II. LOCATION OF REGISTERED OFFICE:-The registered office of the HARYANA STATE BOXING ASSOCIATION (HSBA) shall be at Gurgaon.

#### III: AIMS AND OBJECTS:-

The aims and objects of the HARYANA STATE BOXING ASSOCIATION (HSBA) are as under:-

- (a) The Association shall work to create good relationship between Districts, Academies, SAI Sports Hostel
- (b) The Association shall ensure the welfare of the boxers.
- (c) The Association shall create good co-operation and promote mutual respect among affiliated coaches and reciprocal of penalties and suspensions.
- (d) The Association shall provide annual tournament calendar to the boxers.
- (e) The Association shall provide results of every National and International Championships to the boxers.
- (f) It would provide latest rules and regulations of Boxing.
- (g) The Association shall publish a Boxing Magazine, which shall contain literature, rule & regulations, and other information about Boxing, new technique of Boxing, articles of famous boxers, coaches and other information about National/All India & international Championships.
- (h) The Association shall help the coaches and their families during crisis.
- (i) The Association shall award the outstanding boxers.
- (j) The Association shall provide coaching camps to the boxers.
- (k) The Association shall fight to solve the problems of the boxers in the State.
- (I) The Association shall work for the improvement of standard of boxing so that the boxers may be able to win medals in the Olympics.
- (m) The Association shall work for the benefit and uplift of the boxers.
- (n) The Association shall work to promote the spirit of co-operation and understanding among sports persons.
- (o) The Association shall work to promote and to maintain the highest standard of profession and integrity of the Boxing in the Country.
- (p) The Association shall work to strive for the betterment of working conditions of the boxers and coaches of the country, including their fitness, organize competitions, to improve the sportsmanship, to prepare better sportsman for international level, providing better equipment's for practice, to arrange better coaches for the training, to provide better diet, to arrange specialist doctor for the injuries which are usually caused during competitions and training, to arrange psychologists for the improvement of mental status of a good sportsman.

- (q) The Association shall work for the betterment of remuneration status and working conditions of the boxers and coaches for the safeguarding and promoting their interest generally.
- (r) The Association shall build up funds for the provision of legal aids.
- (s) The Association shall arrange counsel, represent the members and boxers in the Courts in case of any allegation for the betterment of the Association.
- (t) The Association shall promote, organize and sponsor centers for training in different aspects of Boxing.
- (u) The Association shall strive for the rationalization of Govt. aid to boxers and shall work for the healthy growth of better boxers.
- (v) The Association shall work to arrange employment for the better results of the sports (boxing).
- (w) The Association shall work to constitute the charitable and welfare trusts for its members and boxers.
- (x) The Association shall provide scholarships of outstanding boxers and their coaches on its Own behalf and shall support the outstanding boxers to obtain scholarship either from Government of Haryana, Govt. of India or Sports Authority of India.
- (y) The Association shall arrange sponsorship for outstanding boxers through sports loving persons, organizations, private companies and from Ltd. companies for the betterment of boxing.
- (z) The Association shall arrange good qualified coaches for better technique in different aspects of boxing through its different centers throughout the country.

#### IV. GOVERNING BODY:-

The names, addresses, age, occupations and designations of the present members of the Governing Body to whom the management of the Association is being entrusted as required under Section 2 of the Societies Registration Act of 1860, as applicable to the District are as follows :-

S. No.	Name	Address	Designation

#### V. DESIROUS PERSONS:-

We, the undersigned, are desirous of forming a Society namely General Association of Haryana State Boxing Association under the Societies Registration Act, 1860, as applicable to the Registration of the District in pursuance of this Memorandum of Association of the Society are as follows :-

S. No.	Name	Occupation	Age	Signature

# RULES AND REGULATIONS of Haryana State Boxing Association

#### **Article I. DEFINITIONS**

- a. 'Association' means the Haryana State Boxing Association
- b. 'Member' means a Member of the Haryana State Boxing Association
- c. 'The General Assembly" means and includes representatives of the District Associations and Academy/Club in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Association and framed here under.
- d. 'The Executive Committee" means the Executive Committee of the Association constituted under the rules and regulations of the Association.
- e 'Constitution". Means the Rules, Regulations and Bye-laws of the Association.
- f. 'Office Bearer' means the President, Vice President, General Secretary, Joint Secretary and the Treasurer of the Association.
- g. 'APB' means AIBA Professional Boxing.
- h. 'WSB' means World Series Boxing.

#### Article- II. ASSOCIATION YEAR:

The official year, including financial year, of the Haryana State Boxing Association shall be from 1st April to 31st March.

#### Article- III. MEMBERSHIP:

The Membership of the Federation shall be open to the under-mentioned, subject to approval by the Annual General Body:

- a) District Boxing Associations which have a governing body controlling Boxing;
- b) Sport Authority of Indian, Govt. Body, Academy, Club, which are promoting boxing at various levels, can be given recognition i.e. only for participation but not vote at Meetings of the General Council

### Article- IV. PROCEDURE FOR ADMISSION

- 1. An application to be admitted as a Member must be sent to the General Secretary and must include the following:
- a) a copy of the governing statutes, constitution or bylaws of the applicant
- b) a Certificate of Registration under Societies Registration Act XXI of 1860,
- c) a Certificate of affiliation with their District Olympic Association,
- d) a list of the applicant's minimum 10 affiliated School, Collage and Block Associations.
- e) a list of the applicant's Office Bearers.
- f) the membership fee for admission.
- g) a summary of the past and present activities in regards to the development of the Boxing

2. The General Secretary shall place before the Annual General Meeting such applications for disposal. The General House may reject any application for affiliation without assigning any reason. In the case of rejection of an application for affiliation the fees deposited shall be refunded.

# Article- V. CANCELLATION OF MEMBERSHIP

A Member may have its membership status cancelled if the Member:

- (a) Resigns such membership;
- (b) is excluded from the Association by a decision of the Executive Committee ratified by the General Council; or
- (c) if the association compromising the Member is dissolved.

# Article- VI. MEMBERSHIP FEES

- a. The every application for membership shall be accompanied by an affiliation fee of Rs.50, *000/-* and an annual subscription of Rs.500/.Association shall be subjected to review of confirmation by the Annual General Body Meeting of HSBA.
- b. The annual subscription shall become due on the 1st April and shall have to be paid on or before 31<sup>st</sup> March of the year.

# Article- VII. APPEAL AND RE-AFFILIATION OF MEMBERS:

- a. The suspended units can be restored to the membership of the Association on the payment of fee along with a fine of Rs.150*00/-* before 31st March of the current year
- b. The every member/unit who has either been suspended or terminated from the Primary Membership of the Association will have the right of appeal against his suspension or termination within a period of one month from the date of his knowledge of the action taken against him.
- c A member/unit who has been suspended or terminated from the Association can be re- admitted in the Association after a gap of two years from his termination of the HSBA.

# Article- VIII. RIGHTS AND PRIVILAGES OF MEMBERSHIP:

- (i) All the members will have the right to ask for the President to call the emergency meeting of the house with the permission of the President or the General Secretary of the Association with in period of one month notice /receipt.
- (ii) All the members will have the right to inspect the register of the accounts after making a correspondence with the General Secretary who will complaint within three months of the receipt of such requisition.
- (iii) All the members will have the right to inspect the records of the Association in the working hours of the all working days.
- (iv) All members will have the right to vote of the annual general body meeting of the HSBA. Provided that annual subscription and other dues if any to the Association have been duly paid.

#### Article- IX. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING:

A meeting of the Executive Committee shall be convened every year whenever considered necessary be the General Secretary in consultation with the President. The Executive Committee of the Association shall consist of: All the Office-bearers of the Association and Chairman of all the Committee/Commission. The Executive Committee Meeting shall conduct the following agenda points: To discuss and confirm the minutes of the previous meeting.

To consider the General Secretary's Report of previous year.

To consider the Audited statement of accounts for the previous year

and to recommend the same to the General Body for approval.

Any matter affecting the welfare of the Association which the President / Chairman may bring or allow to be brought before it.

#### Article- X. ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:

Annual General Meeting of the General body shall ordinarily be held before 31st March each year. The General Secretary in consultation with the President shall decide the venue, date and time of the conference. The Annual General Meeting shall conduct the following Agenda points:-

- i) Confirmation of the Minutes of the previous meeting.
- ii) Consideration and Adoption of Annual Report to be submitted by the General Secretary.
- iii) Consideration and Passing of the Audited Statement of Accounts to be submitted by the Honorary Treasurer for the previous year and budget for the following year.
- iv) Election of Office-Bearers if due (every 4 years).
- v) Appointment of Auditors.
- vi) Amendment in the Constitution if any.
- vii) Consider the Calendar for the various State Championships, Open invitation Championships.
- viii) Such other Business as may have been duly notified.
- ix) Any matter affecting the welfare of the Association which the President/Chairman may bring or allow to be brought before it.

#### Article- XI. SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

The Special General Meeting shall be convened by the General Secretary on receipt of a written requisition from the President or from at least 10 affiliated Units or at the direction of the Executive Committee. Such a Meeting shall be held not less than 20 days before and not more than 30 days after receipt of such Requisition. The Requisition must clearly state the reason for calling of the Special General Meeting and no Business other than that mentioned in the Requisition shall be transacted in the Meeting. However, Special General Meetings may be summoned at any time by the President at his discretion to pass a Resolution of No Confidence. It will be a mandatory requirement that such Resolution against the President, General Secretary , Treasurer and other Executive Members be passed only by 2/3 members present and will be done by Voting. A Resolution of No Confidence not supported by 2/3 majority will be deemed to have fallen through and the Motion will be treated as 'null and void'. The Quorum for such a Meeting will be 3/4 of the total strength of the Representatives entitled to vote. Not with standing anything contained in the Constitution, an Emergency Meeting of the General Body may be convened by the General Secretary in consultation with the President or by the President himself, on 'urgent specific matter', with 10 days clear notice of such Meeting being given to each Member. Decisions arrived at an Emergency Meeting shall be put up for ratification at the next General body Meeting.

#### Article-XII. NOTICES AND QUORUM FOR MEETINGS:

- a Thirty days notice for the annual general meeting along with the agenda shall be given to the members. Quorum for meeting shall be 50% + one of the members.
- b Twenty days notice for a special meeting along with the agenda shall be given. Quorum for each meeting shall be 2/3 of the members.
- c Fifty days notice for the meeting of the executive committee along with agenda shall be given to the members. Quorum for each meeting shall be 3/4 of the members.

### Article-XIII. QUALIFICATION OF REPRESENTATIVES:

Representatives deputed by Member Units to attend Annual General, Executive Committee or Special General meeting shall be citizens of India and men of good standing, sound judgment and independent mind with a knowledge of and belief on Olympic principles. They must be amateurs according to the rules of the International Olympic Committee. The President of, in his absence, the Chairman of the meeting shall approve the accreditation of all members before the commencement of the Annual General, Executive Committee or Special General meeting.

#### Article-XIV. ELECTION:-

- (a) Election of the President, General Secretary, Treasurer and the members of the Executive Committee shall be conducted by secret ballot.
- (b) The President/General Secretary shall appoint a returning officer to conduct election. The Returning Officer shall be an office bearer of the Association.
- (c) The procedure for conducting Elections may be prescribed from time to time by the Executive Committee of the Association subject to the approval of the Annual General Body.
- (d) Nominations for elections, duly proposed and seconded by members should reach the office of the Association at least five clear days before the day fixed for election.
- (e) A nominee of Indian Amateur Boxing Federation (IABF) should be present at the time of election.
- (f) A nominee of Haryana Olympic Association should be present at the time of election.
- (g) Each member may propose/second, as many candidates as there are number of posts/seats in each category. If a member is a candidate for the post of any office bearer, he cannot propose/second any other person for the same post.
- (h) Each member shall cast as many votes as there are seats, but shall not give more than one vote to each candidate.

(i) District Boxing Association will produce the name of their candidates they want to fight the election for various posts to the holding of the elections at the Annual General Meeting of the HSBA. It is to mention here that the candidate should be the member of office bearer of District Boxing Association. Change of name of the nominated candidate will not be allowed unless prior permission in writing is obtained from the President/General Secretary, HSBA

#### Article-XV. VOTING RIGHT

- (a) All Affiliated District Boxing Association would be the entitled to cast of two votes (President, Secretary and their nominee) votes during the election of HSBA
- (b) In case of equality of votes, the Chairman shall exercise a casting vote.

#### Article-XVI. OFFICE BEARERS:

1) The following will be the office-bearers of Association, who shall be elected from amongst the members of the Annual General, Meeting.

a)	President	- One
b)	Vice-Presidents	- Ten
c)	General Secretary	- One
d)	Honorary Treasurer	- One
e)	Joint Secretaries	- Ten

- 2. The President, Haryana State Boxing Association, including the District Boxing Association can hold the office for a maximum period of twelve years with or without break.
- 3. The General Secretary and the Treasurer HSBA including the District Boxing Association serve a maximum of two successive terms of four years each after which a minimum cooling off period of four years will apply to seek fresh election to either post. The Executive Council of the Federation may hold office as such, for one or more terms of 4 years each, on obtaining simple majority votes of the Members present and voting in election.
- 4. The President/General Secretary, Office Bearer and Treasurer, HSBA, including the District Boxing Association, shall cease to hold that post on attaining the age of 70 years.
- 5. No office-bearer of the Association shall be eligible to be an office-bearer simultaneously of any other State/ District Association excepting the Haryana Olympic Association.
- 6. He/ She shall be citizen of Haryana
- 7. He/ She should not have been convicted by any court for any offence involving moral turpitude.
- 8. He/ She shall obtain previous sanction from the Government if he is a Government Servant and be allowed to hold office for a maximum term of four years or for one term, whichever is less.

### Article- XVII. FUNCTIONS OF ANNUAL GENERAL BODY

The General Body shall elect its President, General Secretary, Treasurer and Executive Committee for four years ordinarily in the month of March/ April. The Executive Committee may however extend the terms of the office bearers for a maximum period of six months.

- (a) All decisions of the Annual General Body meeting shall be passed by a majority of the members present.
- (b) Voting by proxy shall not be permitted.
- (c) The Annual General Body shall have the right to suspend/disqualify or remove from membership for any period to any member/unit who has acted contrary to the interest and objects of the Association. Any decision of the Annual General Body under this clause shall be by a majority of two-third of the member present and voting.

# Article- XVIII. POWER OF ANNUAL GENERAL BODY

- (a) General Body shall formulate the policy of the Association and principles on which it shall be carried out.
- (b) General Body shall have the right to elect the Officer Bearers of the Association.
- (c) General Body shall decide any dispute arising in and between the members.
- (d) General Body shall resolve the dispute arising between any of the member and the Association. No such decided dispute shall be taken to any court of Law.
- (e) General Body shall explain interpret and implement the rules and regulations of the Association and shall have the right to decide any point not covered therein.
- (f) General Body shall impose or enforce penalties for any violation of the rules and regulation of the Association.
- (g) General Body shall control the dues and funds of the Association and shall expend the same.
- (h) General Body shall have the right to appoint the auditor.
- (i) General Body shall consider and approve the budget, the annual report and audited accounts of the Association.
- (j) General Body shall appoint the sub-committees.
- (k) General Body shall have the right to amend the constitution when it would be considered necessary.
- (I) General Body shall arrange the funds for the Association and shall administer the same.
- (m) General Body shall be the official body in complete and shall be the sole charge of Haryana State Boxing Association.
- (n) General Body shall be ensure the welfare of the Boxers.
- (o) General Body shall have the right to nominate and appoint any member as a Hony. Life President or Presidents in recognition of an individual's contribution to the Association.

# Article- XIX. FUNCTION OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

(a) The Executive Committee by its discretion co-operation for members. Casual vacancies on the Executive Committee shall be filled by the committee by co-option till the next General Body meeting provided that in a given year not more than four vacancies exceed this number, a General Body meeting shall be called to fill all the vacancies including those already filled by co-operation.

- (b) The Executive Committee shall conduct the affairs of the Association and enforce discipline subject, however, to the direction and guidance of its General Body.
- (c) The Executive Committee may meet as and when necessary but shall meet at least once every three consecutive months.
- (d) The quorum for a meeting of the Executive Committee shall be 3/4 of its total strength
- (e) The notice period for a meeting of the Executive Committee shall be twenty days in the case of a routine meeting ten days in case of emergency meeting.
- (f) The Executive Committee's decision shall be by a majority of votes. The President or the Chairman, in case of tie, shall have a casting vote in addition to how own vote.
- (g) The Executive Committee or any member or office bearer thereof can be removed by a vote of non-confidence passed at a meeting of the General Body by two-third majority of the members present and voting.
- (h) Any member of the Executive Committee or any committee set up by it or the Annul General Body who is absent for more than three consecutive meeting without obtaining permission of the President of the Committee shall be deemed to have ceased to be a member of the Committee.

### Article- XX . DUTIES OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE:

- (a) To conduct the General management of the Association.
- (b) To recommend the general bodies a scheme for the promotion and development of Boxing. After approval it can be brought to the notice of the HSBA.
- (c) To perform such other duties as may be assigned to them by the General Body.
- (d) The Executive Committee shall meet at any State Boxing Championship or at any other place, which will be decided by the President and General Secretary to make it convenient for all the Executive Committee Members.

### Article- XXI. VACANCIES IN EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee shall have the power to fill up any vacancy caused due to any

reason by Co-operation from among the Representatives of The Annual General

Meeting, and Co-operation shall remain good till the next election.

### Article- XXII. RESIDUARY POWERS

Any matter not provided for in these Rules shall be dealt with by the Annual General

Meeting or the Executive Committee as the case may be.

#### Article-XXIII. ADMINISTRATION

Subject to the supervision and control of the Annual General Body, the Executive Committee shall be responsible for a day-to-day administration of the Association and allocation of the Association's fund.

#### Article-XXIV. HONORARY LIFE PRESIDENT

In order to reward exceptional merit in or Service to the advancement of Amateur Boxing upon the recommendation of the Executive Committee, the General Council shall be entitled to elect an 'Honorary Life President' who may attend, speak but not vote at Meetings of the General Council, unless representing his own State/Unit/Board Association as a Delegate. The Election will be contested in the same manner as other Elections at the General Council. The General Council may, on the recommendations of the Executive Committee, terminate any Honorary Membership of a Honorary Life President.

# Article- XXV. POWER AND DUTIES OF THE PRESIDENT

- (a) The President of the Association shall have the right to preside over all meetings of then Association and of the Executive Committee, preserve order and sign all minutes.
- (b) The President shall have the powers to call special meeting of the Executive Committee.
- (c) The President shall have the authority to take and implement emergency decisions till the next meeting of the Executive Committee.
- (d) The President shall exercise superintendent over officer bearers and members of the Executive Committee and other commissioners in the discharge of their duties. The President shall have over all powers of supervision over the working of the Association and its efficient administration.
- (e) The President shall implement the objects of the Association. He shall also deal with the disciplinary matters connected with Association and members.
- (f) The President has to ensure the sound financial position of the Association and he shall be authorized to sanction expenditure up to Rs. 50000/-. The exceeded amount shall have to be sanctioned and regularized by the Executive Committee.

#### Article- XXVI. POWER AND DUTIES OF THE VICE PRESIDENT

The Vice President shall assist the President in the performance of his duties and carry out the work assigned to him. In the absence of the President, the Vice-President shall be required to act in place of him. Look after sponsorship matters and arrangement funds.

### Article- XXVII. POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE GENERAL SECRETARY

- a) The General Secretary shall be consulted with the President keep in mind of all meetings, shall conduct all correspondence, convene meetings reports and shall be responsible for submission to the registrar of association and other competent authority returns and notices required under the Indian trade Union Act.
- b) The General Secretary shall carry out all other duties that the Working Committee entrusts to him in the interest of the Association.
- c) The General Secretary shall transact all the business in accordance with the decisions of the General Body, executive committee under the direction of the President.
- d) The General Secretary shall have the power to authorized expenditure up to Rs. 25000/- at any time subject to rectification by the Executive Committee authorized by it in advance. He will receive the payment, if any, in the absence of the treasure and will pass the accounts for him.
- e) The General Secretary shall be responsible for the maintenance of the properties (movable and immovable) of the Association. He shall prepare and submit the annual report at the annual general meeting of the Association.

f) The General Secretary shall, subject to the Working Committee's approval in advance, have the powers to engage staff necessary for the working of the Association in general or for a specified purpose.

# Article- XXVIII. POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE JOINT SECRETARY

The Joint Secretary shall assist the General Secretary in the performance of his duties and carry out the work assigned to him. In the absence of the General Secretary, the Joint Secretary shall be required to act in place of him.

# Article- XXIX. POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE TREASURER

- (a) The Treasurer shall be responsible for depositing all sums in accordance and signing all receipts. In his absence the President shall nominate a member of the Executive Committee to take over his duties.
- (b) The funds of the Association shall consist of admission fees, subscription, special fees donations and contributions which the Association may decide to raise time to time.
- (c) The funds of the Association shall be deposited in scheduled Bank approved by the Executive Committee. The account shall be in the name of the Association and may be operated by the Treasurer and by anyone of the President and General Secretary.

### Article- XXX. OPERATION OF BANK ACCOUNTS

The funds of the Association shall be deposited in scheduled Bank approved by the Executive Committee. The account shall be in the name of the Association and may be operated by the Treasurer and by anyone of the President and General Secretary.

### Article- XXXI. AUDIT OF ACCOUNTS

The accounts of the Association shall be audited by an auditor appointed by the Executive Committee in accordance with the provisions of the Indian Trade Act.

The Association shall maintain a register of all its members with particulars of their place of residence, work and full name. The register shall remain open for inspection conducted by any member or office-bearer of the Association at its office during office hours at any working day, but with prior permission of the General Secretary.

### Article- XXXII. SOURCE OF INCOME:-

- (a) The Association shall publish its souvenir after completion of the financial year and shall collect advertisements from different companies/individuals/Government.
- (b) The Association shall earn by donation presented by sports lovers for the promotion of the sports.
- (c) The Association shall collect the subscription fee from each of its members.
- (d) The Association shall collect annual membership fee from its members.
- (e) The Association shall seek financial help from the Government for the smooth running of its own.

### Article- XXXIII. UTILIZATION OF FUNDS:

Subject to the provisions of Section 15 of the Indian Trade Union Act, the funds of the Association shall not be spent on any object other than the following:

- (a) Payment of salaries allowances and expenses to the staff of the Association.
- (b) Payment of expenses of the administration of the Association, including audit of the accounts.
- (c) Provisions of social and recreational facilities to its members.
- (d) Legal proceedings to which the Association or any member thereof or boxer of the area may be a party and which are undertaken to secure or protect any right of the Association or boxers untidily as such or any right arising out of the relations of any member with any shop keeper, manufacturer of any equipment of dealer of sports equipment's or dealer of sport wears.
- (e) Conduct of any trade dispute on behalf of the Association or any member thereof.
- (f) Payment for any other purpose which confirm to the objects 'of the Association and which is approved by the Executive Committee.
- (g) The Executive Committee shall in no case utilize more than 95% of the funds at the disposal of the Association.
- (h) The accounts shall be audited annually by an auditor.

#### Article- XXXIV. TA / DA AND OFFICIATING ANNOUNCE FOR STATE BOXING CHAMPIONSHIPS

Qualification	TA/ DA and Officiating Announce
Referee/ Judges (State)	200/- per day
Computer Operator	500/- per day
Referee/ Judges (IABF)	500/- per day
Referee/ Judges (AIBA,FAAB)	600/- per day
TD, STO'S (Chairman Jury, Judges' Evaluator, Referee'	600/- per day
Evaluator, Medical Jury, R/J Coordinator, Equipment	
Manager, Recorder and PRO) and Draw Jury	
Computer Scoring Charge	5000/-

### Article- XXXV. PERMANENT COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES

- a) The composition of the Commission shall be decided by the Executive Committee. The principle of District/ Board equality in the formation of all Commissions shall be observed. Each Commission shall have at least six (06) members, but not more than Twenty (20)
- b) The Chairman and Vice-Chairman and Members each of the Commissions shall be appointed by the Executive Committee Members of the Commissions shall be Executive Committee Members and experienced Members of the District Associations.
- c) The following Commissions shall be formed:-
  - Technical & Rules Commission
  - Ring Officials Commission.
  - Medical Commission.
  - Athletes & Youth Commission.
  - Press and Public Relations Commission.

- Safety & Equipment Commission.
- Coaches Commission.
- Business & Marketing Commission.
- Selection Committee
- Legal & Arbitration Commission
- Disciplinary Committee
- Women's Commission
- WSB Commission
- AIBA Professional Boxing Commission (APB)
- (d) Reports. The above Commissions shall all base their activities on annual and four-year working programs to be submitted to the Executive Committee at the first Executive Committee and Annual Meeting following the Congress. The Commissions shall tender reports to the Executive Committee so as to keep the latter informed as to their activities, and shall be subject to the directions of the Executive Committee.
- e) The Commission shall arrange their own meetings at least twice each year. The Chairman shall draw up the agenda.
- f) The Chairman of all Commission/Committee shall be an 'ex-officio member' of the General Council and Executive Committee of the Association and is permitted to attend its meetings but shall not have any voting right.

# Article- XXXVI. OATH OF OFFICE

"Accorded the honor of becoming Executive Committee Member of the Haryana State Boxing Association (HSBA), the State Sport's Governing Body for State Boxing, and of representing it in my country-and recognizing my duties in this capacity, I pledge myself to serve the HSBA. and the Olympic Movement to the Articles and Rules of HSBA, and its decisions which I consider as not subject to appeal on my part, keeping myself free from any political or commercial influence and from any racial of religious consideration.

# Article- XXXVII. ORGANIZATION AND FUNCTIONS OF THE STANDING COMMISSIONS

### 1) Technical & Rules Commission

The Technical & Rules Commission shall be composed of its Chairman and four

members. The commission should be composed of qualified and experience official.

- 1.2) Duties:
  - 1.2.1) The Commission is responsible for the development of HSBA Technical & Competition Rules applicable to boxing and proposes new rules and amendments to existing rules. One of its main tasks is to implement the current HSBA scoring system.
  - 1.2.2) It also deals with issues concerning boxing equipment and competition uniforms and helps implement the R&J and Coaching Management Systems.
  - 1.2.3) This Commission is also responsible for the development and amendment to the WSB Technical & Competition Rules.

### 2) Ring Official Commission:

- 2.1) The Ring officials Commission shall be composed of its Chairman, Vice-Chairman, Secretary and Eight members. The commission should be composed of qualified Referee / Judge of IABF/HSBA.
- 2.2) Duties:
  - 2.2.1) This Commission deals with all issues related to Referees & Judges. It is responsible for the development and implementation of the HSBA R&J Management System that caters for the development, education, certification and maintenance of R&Js.
  - 2.2.2) It also ensures that Officials appointed to HSBA Competitions are suitably qualified and secures sufficient numbers of appropriately accredited R&Js for, state and national competitions by creating teaching tools, tutorial and career paths that will sustain the quality of R&Js.
- 2.2.3) This Commission also identifies and recommends R&Js to support the WSB and APB program.
- 2.2.4) The examination fees Rs. 500/- for the State panel of Referees & Judges.
- 2.2.5) Test for R/J examination total marks = 100
  - a Physical Test
    b Written Test
    c Announcer & Time Keeper
    d Practical
    b Viva
    c Viva
    c O5 Marks
    c O5 Marks

### 2) MEDICAL COMMISSION.

- 3.1) The Medical Commission shall be composed of its Chairman, 4 Vice-Chairman and Eight members. The commission should be composed of qualified Doctor.
- 3.2) DUTIES:
- 3.2.1) This Commission deals with all medical issues relating to boxing and in particular issues relating to the health and safety of Boxers. It also coordinates anti-doping matters.
- 3.2.2) It also provides a high level of expertise and knowledge about the care and followup treatment of Boxers in different environments, at the ringside and out of competition, including fitness to box, performance and improvement issues.

- 3.2.3) This Commission aims to provide the HSBA Headquarters with a sufficient number of ringside physicians for all HSBA Competitions including WSB and APB: to this and, it shall arrange various training programs and provide educational materials leading to a sustainable high quality of ringside physicians. It also contributes to all HSBA projects medical dimension in order to promote the safety of boxing.
- 3.2.4) All Medical Commission members are permitted to serve as Medical Jury members.
- 3.2.5) In emergency conditions, the local or Team Doctors may also act as Medical Jury In case there is shortage of Medical Jury
- 3.2.6) For the championships two Medical Jury members are permitted.
- 3.2.7) The Medical Jury shall be available 30 minutes prior to the start of general weight & Medical on the first day.
- 3.2.8) On subsequent days the Medical Jury shall report at a suitable time before the start of official weigh-in
- 3.2.9) The Medical Jury shall be in the FOP at least 15 minutes before the start of the 1<sup>st</sup> Bout in every session
- 3.2.10) Medical Jury members shall provide Medical Examination for NTOs & R/Js one Day before to the start of the competition.
- 3.2.11) Medical Jury members shall check for adequate food and hydration provisions to be provided for the Boxers and officials.
- 3.2.12) Medical Jury shall also arrange for and examine Age for Boxers.
- 3.2.13) Medical Commission Members can participate in HSBA approved events only.

# 4. ATHLETES & YOUTH COMMISSION

- a) The Youth Commission shall be composed of it Chairman, 4 Vice-Chairman and 8 members the commission should be composed of State and National level Sports persons and cease to hold that post on attaining the age of 40 years.
- b) DUTIES.
  - 1). It shall be responsible for popularizing. Boxing and may work with the Press and Public Relations commission to accomplish this objective.
  - In close cooperation with the Medical Commission and the Technical Commission of HSBA. it shall set up uniform principles for the development of Boxing among children and youth, and it should also create conditions for the protection of young boxers.
  - 3) In case cooperation with the Ring Official Commission the Youth Commission shall recommend rules and procedures for the State Championship. A member of the Youth Commission shall always be one of the Technical Delegates to the State Championships.
  - 4) It shall be responsible for making medical record book and registration of the boxers in the Championships.
  - 5) It shall be responsible for making Computer programming in the boxing championships.
  - 6) It shall be responsible for making Merit & Participation Certificate in the boxing championships.

# 5. PRESS AND PUBLIC RELATIONS COMMISSION

- a) The Press and Public Relations Commission shall be composed of it Chairman,
   4 Vice- Chairman and twenty members
- b) DUTIES.
  - 1) The Press and Public Relations Commission will advice the Executive Committee on all matters dealing with the media, with publications and with public relations.
  - 2) Keep liaison with National media and promote the cause of Boxing.
  - 3) Regularly feed information to member associations and the Press regarding all developments and activities of HSBA.
  - 4) Take corrective action as necessary in case of any adverse publicity.
  - 5) Supervise the publication of the HSBA. Magazine and publish other brochures or publicity material of and when necessary.
  - 6) Subject to directions by the President/General Secretary, organize Press Conferences at Congresses, State Championship events, and whenever appropriate.

# 6. SAFETY AND EQUIPMENT COMMISSION

- a) The Safety and Equipment Commission shall be composed of it Chairman and five members. The commission should be composed of qualified members.
- b) DUTIES.
- 1. The Commission shall advice the Executive Committee of HSBA. in approving boxing equipment and implements, particularly boxing rings, gloves and head guard.
- 2 It shall draw up regulations and standards specifying the quality of all equipment necessary for the practice of amateur boxing.
- 3 It shall collaborate with experienced coaches, medical officers and manufacturers in order to develop new equipment that offers better protection for the health of boxing.
- 4 It shall advise the Executive Committee on all matters regarding the safety of boxers in training and competition.

# 7. BUSINESS & MARKETING COMMESSION

- a) The Business Commission shall be composed of it Chairman and five members.
- b) DUTIES.
  - 1. To provide expertise for the generation of funds through sponsorships, advertising, marketing, and the creation of more income-producing activities.
  - 2. To especially advise and assist in marketing HSBA. Championships
  - 3. To work in close collaboration with the Finance Commission of HSBA.
  - 4. The Executive Committee Members who are the Business representatives of each Association will offer similar expertise to the Association for their State Championships.

#### 8. LEGAL & ARBITRATION COMMISSION

a) The Legal Commission shall be composed of its Chairman and five members.

The commission should be composed of qualified lawyers.

- b) DUTIES.
  - 1. To assist the President/ General Secretary of H.S.B.A. in the legal representation of H.S.B.A.
  - To mediate in the case of disputes between District Boxing Association affiliated to H.S.B.A.
  - 3. To give an expert opinion on contracts concluded by H.S.B.A.
  - 4. To assist the Executive Committee in watching over the observance of the Articles and Rules of H.S.B.A. and the decision taken by H.S.B.A.
  - In case of there being more than one Unit in a District, the Legal Commission of HABA shall be final Authority in deciding which Unit is to be 'affiliated' with the HSBA.
  - 6) The Association may use or be used in the name of the General Secretary of Haryana State Boxing Association and Suit if any, shall be filed at the Head quarters of the Association

# **9 SELECTION COMMITTEE**

- a) The Selection Committee shall be composed of its Chairman, Secretary and Ten members (Ex-international / Arjun Awardees/ Bhim Awardees/ Dronacharya Awardees) an State Chief Coach the Sub- Junior/ Junior / Senior Coaching Camp In-charge, President of the HABA as its Chairman and General Secretary of the HSBA as its Secretary
- b) DUTIES.
  - 1. Probable for intensive coaching and final teams for all championships
  - 2. National/ International qualified official including referees / judges etc. to assist in the preparation of the national teams .
  - 3. Medical personnel and sports scientists to assist in the preparation of the teams on continuous and systematic basis.
  - 4. The State Chief Coach and Coach in Camp In-charge will be Selected by the committee.
  - 5. The Selection Committee, in consultation with the State Chief Coach will chose other members of the Coaching Team.

- 6. The Chief Coach will evaluate the progress and performance of the sportspersons in the coaching camps and make recommendations to the Selection Committee regarding elimination of sportspersons who show unsatisfactory performance. He may also recommended included of new probable. The Selection Committee will decide the elimination/ includes of sportspersons as recommended by the State Chief Coach.
- 7. The State Chief Coach / Coach In-charge, sports sciences experts etc. shall not normally be changed of modified once chosen until the two Year.

#### **10. COACHES COMMISSION**

This Commission ensures representation, protection and promotion of the interests of the coaches. It is also responsible for the development and implementation of the HSBA Coaching Management System

#### **11. WOMEN'S COMMISSION**

This Commission deals with specific issues related to the practice, development and promotion of boxing amongst women.

It also encourages the grassroots development of women's boxing, as well as of women R&Js, Coaches, STOs, and Officials. This Commission aims to add more weight categories to the women's competition in any State Multi-Sports Events including the State Games

#### **12. WSB COMMISSION**

This Commission is responsible for the continuing development of WSB.

#### **13. PROFESSIONAL BOXING COMMISSION**

Where the term 'professional boxing commission' is used in the HSBA Statutes, Rules, Regulations, such term shall be interpreted as referring to any organization, including any regulatory, Licensing bodies, involved in a professional sports activity where boxing is a component part of such activity and shall include such sports activities as mixed martial arts (MMA), UFC, kickboxing, K-1 and other similar combat sports as may be determined by IABF.

Where the term 'professional boxing match' is used in the HSBA Statutes, Rules Regulations, such term shall be interpreted as referring to any professional sports activity where boxing is a component part of such activity and shall include such sports activities as mixed martial arts (MMA), UFC, kickboxing, K-1 and other similar combat sports as may be determined by IABF.

### Article- XXXVIII. UNSPORTSMAN LIKE BEHAVIOUR AND ACT OF VIOLENCE

During District/ State Championship Conventions, Meetings, and National events, if any Un sportsman like behavior is reported on the part of Boxer, Official or Coach, which includes insulting, making undesirable gestures, abusing the decision of the Judges/Referees/Jury and provoking the Opponents or spectators, etc., in a way committing any act which is not in keeping with the propriety of sports, it shall be punished as follows:

- i) Disqualification for the entire duration of the Tournament.
- ii) Prohibition from participation in Competitions for a fixed period of time or for life long Suspension from Amateur Boxing in the District / State / Country.

#### Article- XXXIX. DISCIPLINARY SANCTIONS

The Executive Committee will initiate disciplinary action against any member or association. The affiliated Members of the Association are liable to the following disciplinary Sanctions:

- i) Caution
- ii) Warning
- iii) Suspension for specified period of time. (Period of one or two Yrs or more)
- iv) Expulsion from the Association
- 1. No Penalty shall be imposed before the Members of a District / Unit at fault, has been heard at the Interrogation especially conducted for this purpose.
- 2. Should a concerned Members of the affiliated District / Unit fail to present himself/themselves through its accredited Office-bearer at the Interrogation, the Matter shall then be considered as having been heard at the Interrogation.
- The Annual General Meeting on the recommendation of the President / Hony Secretary / Executive Committee shall suspend/disaffiliate any District / Unit on any of the undermentioned grounds.
  - i) Non-Observance of the directives of the HSBA.
  - ii) Non-conduct of District Championships.
  - iii) Not holding elections (Every 4 Years), whenever due and non-submission of accounts.
  - iv) Lack of activities and non-participation in three consecutive State Championships.

Whereas the suspension will be by simple majority, 'Disaffiliation' will be by 2/3 majority of the members present.

v) The affiliated units shall be debarred from participating in its activities if their two years continuously annual subscription not to be paid to HSBA .

### Article-XXXX. PARTICIPATION IN NATIONAL AND ALL INDIA BOXING CHAMPIONSHIP

Subject to availability of funds, assistance for participation in national and all India championships may cover the HSBA following.

- a) Train / Bus fair for Boxer, Coach, Manager and official
- b) Kit: One Truck suit, One T-shirt, Two west & shorts (1 Red+ 1 Blue) Two Socks, One Ring Shoe, One Warm-up Shoe and One Blazer
- c) Journey allowance Rs. 100/- per 24 hours for Boxers, Rs 150/- Per 24 Hours for Coach, Manager and other officials.

- d) Kit:- One Truck suit ,One T-shirt, One Shoes, one Blazer and one bag for Coach, Manager and other officials
- e) Haryana State Boxing Association provide every championships ceremonial dress

### Article-XXXXI. CONDUCT OF STATE CHAMPIONSHIP

- a) All Boxing Competitions shall be conducted under the rules of the IABF as adopted by the HSBA in their Rules of Competition.
- b) All Boxing Championships entry fees Rs. 1000/- received by HSBA
- c) All the State Boxing Championships Sub-Junior, Junior & Senior shall be organized by a member Association/ Unit of HSBA and these shall be held and completed by every Financial Year.
- d) Bids for the State Championships will be held at the AGM every year and the Executive Committee of the HSBA will decide which District/Unit shall hold the Championships.
- e) Every District/Unit affiliated to the HSBA is entitled to enter one boxer in each weight Class.
- f) If a Boxer is found 'over age', he will be 'dropped out' from the Championship but, if more than 2 Boxers from a particular District/Unit are found 'over age', the complete Team will be debarred from participating in the Event.
- g) Entries for the Championships shall be sent to the Honorary Secretary of the Organizing Member Organization well in 10 day advance of the date fixed for the Championship or as mentioned in the Prospectus of the Event.
- h) No affiliated Unit is empowered to arrange Competitions or participate outside the limits of Haryana without prior sanction of the Association.
- No affiliated Unit shall hold Competitions of All-India/ State nature without prior sanction of the State Association. The Officials for the conduct of the competition shall be approved by the Ring Officials Commission and they shall also depute any Observer to the Competition. TA/DA of such Officials shall be borne by the Organizers
- j) A Protest shall be submitted by the Manager of a Team not later than 30 minutes after the completion of the Session. The Protest shall be made in writing and handed to the Chairman of the Jury, along with a protest fee of Rs. 1000/-. If the Jury agrees to review, necessary action may be taken in the matter. If the Protest is upheld, the money will be refunded.
- k) Reports to the Media. Executive members, members of the Commission Members, and Referees/Judges acting as Officials shall not make Reports to the Press, or make Statements on Television or Radio, on matters relating to the Boxing or with regards to standard of officiating etc at any of the National/ State Boxing Events. Only the President/ General Secretary of HSBA or a person authorized by him, shall be entitled to speak to the Media.

### I) ACTION BY HSBA.

- 1. District/ Club/ Academy Organizing State / other Championship HSBA provided One Boxing Ring, 20 pair Boxing Glove, 20 pair Head guard, One Computer Scoring Machine. (Subject to availability of funds)
- 2. Send writes ups to the Press giving publicity of the State Championship being hosted.
- 3. Prospectus circulate to all affiliated units at least 40 days before the State Championship.
- 4. Inform all Committee Members.
- 5. Prepare Certificates for the State Championship in time.
- 6. Issue of Medical Record books.

#### m) ACTION BY THE ORGANISING DISTRICT/CLUB/ACADEMY

- 1. The District/Unit to which the organization of the Championships is entrusted shall take all responsibility financial and otherwise for holding the same in a proper manner.
- 2. Any affiliated District/ Unit which decides to stage/ host these Championships shall undertake

to carry out the following financial arrangements:

- a) It will be responsible for the full Board and Accommodation of all participating boxers and officials as per the Prospectus of the Championship. If a Member Organization sends less than five boxers, it shall only be entitled to send one (1) Official with the Team.
- b) The full Board and Accommodation shall be made available to the Participants from the date of Assembly until the date of Dispersal, as laid down by the Executive Committee on each Occasion.
- c) Free Transport for all Boxers and Officials from their point of Accommodation to the Boxing Stadium and Training Quarters will be provided by the Organizers.
- d) Every team must bring one State Panel Referee/Judge. Full Board and Accommodation will be provided by the Host Organization for the same period as the Boxers and other Officials.
- e) Adequate Prizes or commemorate Trophies shall be provided.
  - f) Matters not covered by the above sub paragraphs shall be agreed between the Executive Committee and the affiliated Members of the Organization hosting the Event, and the Executive Committee of HSBA shall have Powers to vary any of the Provisions laid down in this Clause to meet particular circumstances.
- g) The Organizers must establish proper Reception Centers with banners at the Railway Station and Bus Stand which must be function at least 48 hours before the event starts till the event commences.
- 3. Affiliated District/Units taking part in the Championships shall be responsible for the Traveling expenses of their Boxers and Officials to and from the venue of the Championships. Transport for various categories of personnel as under :-

- a) Railway Station and Bus Stand during the arrival and departure for Boxers and officials
- b) Boxers, Coaches & Managers Buses (If the distance from their place of lodging to venue is more than 0.5 km)
- c) R/J and Committee Members of HSBA Mini Bus/ Vans/ Sumo (Based on strength)
- 4. The Equipment to be used at each State Championship has to be approved by HSBA and should complied with all regulations laid down by HSBA. Boxing equipments requirements as under
  - a) Boxing Ring= 1b) Boxing Gloves= 15 Red plus 15 Blue
  - c) Head Gear = 15 Red + 15 Blue,
  - d) Electronic Wt Machine = 03
  - e) Stop & Go Watch = 2
  - f) Gong Hammer = 1
  - g) Flags = 2 white, 2 Blue, 2 Red
  - h) 40 ball pen. One Rim White Paper, Stapler, All Pin, Pencil, Marker, 5 Red ball pen
  - i) Register = 1
  - j) Computer Scoring System. = 1set
  - k) Volunteers with dress. = 10
- 5. Boxers will box with head gears which could be brought by themselves as personal wear, provided they are manufactured by HABA approved Company and has a label to denote the same.
- 6. Winner, Runner-up and Semi Finalists in each weight category will receive Medals and Certificates and there will also be a Team Championship Trophy.
  - a) Team Championship = 1 b) Team Runner Up = 1 c) Best Boxer = 1 d) Best Looser = 1 e) Medals (Gold, Silver, Bronze)
- 7. A Panel of (minimum three) Doctors will be appointed by the Organizing Association to check and confirm the age of the Boxers, when in doubt and using medical methods, will have full authority to decide whether the Boxer is overage or not. Doctor Team with Ambulance requirements as under :-

Time	Date	Venue
7 AM To 10 AM	First day	Weighing Side
7 AM To 9 AM	All Day	Weighing Side
2 PM To Onwards	All Day	During the Bouts

- 8. Accommodation suitable for Boxers, Coaches, Managers, R/J, Office Bearers of HSBA. The following criteria be followed :-
  - i) Accommodation for boxers must be clean and should have basic amenities like electricity, water, fans, mattress, bed sheets and sufficient toilets. Care must be taken to see that there is sufficient movement space and that they are not congested.
  - ii) Coach & Managers should be provided with suitable accommodation, separate from the boxers but in their near vicinity so that they can keep an eye on their teams.
  - iii) Referees and Judges, ROC Members, Youth Commission, Computer operator, Selection Committee, Medical Commission be provided sharing base attach toilets.
     iv) Four Researcher UORA office the preservity to be and/or attach.
  - iv) Four Room for HSBA office bearers with boarding.
- 9. Catering arrangements for all participants including officials from one day before the event till one day after the event. If the Organizers decide to reimburse the participants in cash instead of providing food they may arrange to pay them @ 150/- per day for their food. and officials pay them @ 200/- per day . However the amount be paid in advance to all teams and officials immediately on arrival.
- 10. Tent during the championships following requirements as under
  - a) 50 chair
  - b) 2.Waiter with crockery
  - c) 1 PA equipment.
  - d) 15 Table with Cloth
  - e) Light arrangement

f) Overhead cover/ tent over the Jury & Referees / Judges if event is held outdoors.

- g) Changing Rooms / tent age for boxers.
- h) Barricade / rope be placed 15 fit all round the Boxing Ring so that work area is cordoned off from Boxers and spectators enabling the Referee / Judges and Jury to function unhindered.
- 11. Refreshment to be arranged for R/Js and Jury Members at hourly intervals during the bouts= 30 officials
- 12. Computer Scoring System Rent During the Championship:- Rs. 5000/-

# Article- XXXXII. REQUISITION OF THE MEETINGS:-

A minimum of 50+One of the total members may produce requisition in writing to hold a meeting of the Annual General Body to discuss definite any matter of urgent importance and the Hony. Secretary or the President shall convene a meeting within two weeks of receiving the requisition. The minimum number of signature in the case of a requisition for a meeting of the Executive Committee shall be five. Provided that the requisitioned meeting shall be subject to provisions governing the quorum .Provided also that in the case of a meeting requisitioned for some specific purpose if the President or the General Secretary refuses to convene the meeting the members convened after explaining place.

#### Article- XXXXIII. CONFIDENCE MOTION

- (a) An non-confidence motion against the President, and General Secretary or the Executive Committee as a whole may be moved only at a special meeting of the General Body convened for the purpose. The quorum for such a meeting shall be 50+One of the total number of members.
- (b) The motion shall be declared passed if secures a majority of two-third of the members present and voting.

### Article XXXXIV. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS (SECTION 6 OF THE ACT):-

The Association may sure in the name the President, General Secretary, as or may be used in the name of the President, General Secretary as per provision laid down under Section 6 of the Society Registration Act, XXI 1860 as applicable to the State of Haryana.

### Article XXXXV. AMENDMENTS:-

The constitution of the Association may be amended by the special meeting of the General Body by a two-third majority of the numbers present and voting. The quorum for such a meeting shall be 50%+1 provided that no amendment shall be proposed without the previous meeting of the Executive Committee. All such amendments would be intimated to the Registrar of the Societies, Haryana within fifteen days of their passing thereof and shall not be brought into force until they are registered.

# Article. XXXXVI. DISSOLUTIONS AND ADJUSTMENT OF AFFIARS:

The Association shall not be dissolved except by a vote of three-forth of the members present at a meeting of the General Body, specially convened for the purpose. Provided that the total number votes cast at such a meeting shall not be less two-third of the total membership of the Association.

### Article XXXXVII. APPLICATION OF THE ACT:

All the provisions under all the Sections of the Societies Registration Act, 1860 as applicable to the State of Haryana shall apply to this Association.

### Article XXXXVIII ESSENTIAL CERTIFICATE:-

Certificate that this is the correct copy of the Rules and Regulation/Constitution of the Association.